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To The Members of Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We h.!lve .!lUdlted the .!lccompMylng flMncl.!11 st.!ltements of Narayana Valshno Devi Specialty 
Hospitals Private Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as "the 
financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its profit, total comprehensive 
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit ot the tinancial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chattered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
rt!quire111enls c:111tl Ll1t! ICAI'~ Cutlt! ur Elliic~. Wt! IJl::!lit!vt! L11c:1L Ll1t! c:1utlil t!vitlt!11ct! ulJLc:1i11t!tl IJy u~ b 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis tor our audit opinion on the tinancial statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 34 of the Financial Statements which describes the management's 
ussessment of the circumstunces nrising due to COVID 19, the uncertainties nssociatcd with its 
nature and duration and the consequential impact of the same on the financial statements of the 
Company. The Company as of the reporting date does not expect any long-term adverse impact of 
COVID-19 on its ability to recover the carrying value of its current assets and non-current assets 
including trade receivables and property, plant and equipment. However, a definitive assessment of 
the impact is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve in future and the actual results 
may differ from those estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements. 

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

• The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
Information comprises the Information Included In the Director's report, but does not Include 
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

• Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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• In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of 
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

• If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and 
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls. 

• 

V 
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors 
in (i) Planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) To 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

Other Matter 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic related lock-down, we were not able to physically participate in the 
physical verification of Inventory that was carried out by the management close to the year end. 
Consequently, we have performed alternative procedures, including observing the verification 
conducted by the management over electronic medium to audit the existence of inventory as per the 
guidance provided in SA 501 "Audit Evidence - Specific Considerations for Selected Items" and have 
obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to issue our unmodified opinion on the financial 
statements. 

Our opinion on the financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that : 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account a's required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act. 

V 
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year ended March 
31, 2021 and hence reporting under Section 197 of the Act is not applicable. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 
financial position; 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the 
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : May 31, 2021 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
{Referred to in paragraph l{f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 
section of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause {i) of Sub­
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Narayana Vaishno Devi 
Specialty Hospitals Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with 
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed 
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the y company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
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unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2021, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : May 31, 2021 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No.117366W/Wl00018) 
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ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 
section of our report of even date) 

( i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. 

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items in a 
phased manner over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, 
certain fixed assets were physically verified by the Management during the year. 
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification. 

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold land 
and building and hence reporting under clause (i)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(ii) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management 
at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification. 

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees and hence 
reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any 
deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits. 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under 
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence reporting under Clause (vi) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, 
including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Service Tax, 
Customs Duty, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues 
applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. 

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees' 
State Insurance, Income-tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Goods and Service Tax, 
cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, 
Goods and Service Tax, and Value Added Tax as on March 31, 2021 on account of 
disputes. 

(viii) The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks and 
government or issued any debentures. Hence reporting under clause (viii) of the Order is not V applicable to the Company. 
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(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has 
not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees 
has been noticed or reported during the year. .& 

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year ended March 31, 2021 and hence 
reporting under clause (xi) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

(xiii) The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of section 177 is not applicable 
to the Company. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company is in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, for all transactions 
with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the 
financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year 
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of 
its holding company or persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : May 31, 2021 
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Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 
Balance sheet 

Particulars 

ASSETS 

Non-Current Assets 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
Intangible Assets 
Financial Assets 

(i) Loans 
(ii) Other financial assets 

Income tax assets (net) 
Other non-current Assets 
Total Non-Current Assets 

Current Assets 
Inventories 
Financial Assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(iii) Bank balances other thun (ii) above 
(iv) Other financial assets 

Other Current Assets 
Total current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITTF.S 

Equity 
Equily Share Capital 
Other Equity 
Total Equity 

Liabilities 

Non-Current Linbilitics 
Other non-current. I iabil itie.s 
Provisions 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 

<...:urrent I ,iahilitirs 
Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade Payables 
Tota l outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Tot.al oul.slonding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Other current Iit1bil itir.s 
Provisions 
Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Significant accounlmg Policies 
The accompanying notes fo1 m ur1 inL1;1:ral part ofthi:,se financial slalt:ments 

As per our report of even date attached 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLl' 

Chartered Accrnmtnnts 

1\lonlsh11 Parikh 
Partner 

Place: Ahmedabad 
I )MP. ' MAy '.\I, 20:21 

Note 
No 

4 
4 

5 
6 (n) 

7 

8 (n) 

9 

10 
11 (a) 

ll (b) 
6 (I.,) 
8 (b) 

12 
13 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

31 .24 

2 55 
1.00 

169.82 

5.3 I 
209.92 

187.53 

815 .73 

222.12 

2.50 

58.75 

89 'i'i 
1,376.18 

1.586. 10 

100 00 

(100.7<1) 
(100,7~) 

<" in lakhs) 

Asat 
March 31, 2020 

38.61 

0.01 

2 .55 

3 03 

214 .81 

259.01 

213 .23 

1,005.08 

78.69 

2.25 

239 53 

81.84 

1,620.62 

1,87').63 

10000 

(200,95 ) 
(100.9!,J 

14(a) 28 .27 31 .73 
15 (a) ________ 4_1_2_1 _ _ _ _ ___ _ 1_9._6_3 

69.4R 51.36 

16 
0.16 47 68 

1,518.01 1,504.23 

14 (b) 45.89 325 49 

15 (b) 53 30 51.82 

1,617.36 1,92'>.22 

1,586.10 1,1179.(i) 

3 

for and on behulfofthc Board ofDirect01~ uf 
Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitols Private limited 

Dr, Emmnnucl Rupert 
nire()tor 
DIN: 07010883 

Pl~ce: Bengaluru 
Date: May 31 , :LU:.! I 

vJ!J0~ 
DfrCCitor 
DIN, 02 144586 

Placo: Oto11~ulu1 u 
Date: May 31, 2021 



Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 
Statement of profit and loss 

Particulars 

INCOME 
Revenue from Operations 
Other income 
Total Income (A) 

EXPENSES 
Purchase of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 

Note 
No 

17 
18 

Changes in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments-(lncrease)/ 19 
Decrease 

Employee benefit expenses 20 
Professional fees paid to doctors 

Other expenses 21 
Expense before Finance cost and depreciation and amortization and exceptional items (B) 

Profit I (loss) before depreciation and amortization and exceptional items (C) = (A-B) 

Finr.nce costs (D) 

Depreciation and amortisation expense (E) 
Total expenses (F) = (B+D+E) 

Profit/ (loss) before tax (G) = (A-F) 

Tax expenses: 
Current Tax 
Deferred tax ( credit) / charge 

Total tax expense (H) 

Profit I (loss) for the year (I)= (G-H) 

Other Comprehensive income (OCI) 

Items 1/t11t will not be rec/11ssijied subsequently to statement of profit or loss 
Re-mcusurement of delinod benefit plans 
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (J) 

Total Comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (K) = (l+J) 

Earnings/ (loss) per share 
Basic (f} 
Diluted(~ 

Significant accounting Policies 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

32 
22 

26 

28 

3 

(tin lakhs) 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

7,366.37 7,740.32 
55.98 10.79 

7,422.35 7,751.11 

2,295.85 2,065 .94 
25.70 96.33 

1,486.27 1,540.18 
1,608.70 1,984.39 

1,968.49 2,097.70 
7,385.01 7,784.54 

37.34 (33.43) 

0.68 
7.38 16.16 

7,392.39 7,801.38 

29.96 (50.27) 

7.34 2.97 

7.34 2.97 

22.62 (53.24) 

(22.41) (8.80) 

(22.41) (8.80) 

0.21 (62.04) 

2.26 (5.32) 

2.26 (5.32) 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

for and on behalfofthe Board of Directors of 

Monisha Parikh 
Partner 

Place: Ahmedabad 

Date: May 31, 2021 

Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert 
Director 

DIN: 07010883 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: May 31, 2021 

Director 
DIN: 02144586 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: May 31, 2021 

~ 
~ -
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I 

I 
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Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 
Stat~ment of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2021 

(a) Equity share cnpita l 
Pnrtil:u lnrs ' 
Equi ty shares oft 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up 
Balance as at April J, 20l9 · ' ' ' 

hangcs in equity share ca~itnl duri~g 2019-20 (refer note 12) 
Balance as at March 31, 2020 
Changes in equity share capital during 2020-2 1 (refer note 12) 
Balance as at March 31, 2021 

(b) Other Equity 

Particulars 

B11lunce as at April 1, 2019 
Profit / (loss) for the year 
Other comprehcnsi ve income/ (loss) for the year 
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 

l~ahtnce as at March 31, 2020 

Prolit / (loss) for the year 
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year 
Total comprehensive incomc/(loss) for the year 

Balance as at March 31, 2021 

Reserves & Surplus 

Retained earnings 

(137.47) 
(53.24) 

-
(53.24) 

(190.71) 

22.62 

-
22.62 

(168.09) 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Monisha Parikh 
Partner 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: May 31, 2021 

({ in lnklu,, except no of shnrcs) 
No. of Shares ' Amount 

1,000,000 100.00 

1,000,000 100.00 

1,000,000 100.00 

('fin lnkhs) 

Items ofOCI 

Remeasurements of Total other equity 
the net defined 
benefit Plans 

(1.44) (138.91) 

- (53.24) 
(8.80) (8.80) 
(8.80) (62.04) 

(10.24) (200.95) 

- 22.62 
(22.41) (22.41 ) 
(22:41 0.21 
(32.65) (200.74) 

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert 
Director 
DIN: 07010883 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: May 31, 2021 

v,hJ~~b 
D.irector 
DIN : 02144586 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: May 31, 2021 



Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 
Statement of Cash flows 

Particulars 

Cash flow from operating activities 
Profit/ (loss) after tax 

Adjustments: 
Income tax expenses 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Provision for loss allowance 

Provisions no longer required written back 
Finance Costs 
Inte.-e3t on bank deposits 

Operating cash flow before working capital changes 
Changes in inventories 

Changes in trade receivables 

Changes in financial assets and other assets 
Changes in trade payable and other liabilities 
Changes in provision 

Cash generated from operations 
Income tax paid (net of refund) 

N~t cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities (A) 

Cash flow from investing activities 
(Increase)/ Decrease in bank deposits 

Interest received on bank deposits 

Net cash generated from investing activities (B) 

Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 11) 

Significant accounting Policies 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Monisha Parikh 
Partner 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: May 31, 2021 

3 

~ in lakhs) 
For the year ended For the year ended 

Ma rch 31 2021 March 31 2 020 

22.62 (53.24) 

7.34 2.97 
7.38 16.16 

(7.56) 58.31 
(38.53) 

0.68 

(0.47) ( 1.88) 

(9.22) 23.00 
25.70 96.33 

196.91 (436.20) 

169.79 (89.12) 
(278.27) 472.24 

0.65 7.94 
105.56 74.19 
37.65 {100.31 ) 

143.21 (26.12) 

(0.25) 0.75 

0.47 1.88 

0.22 2.63 

1-'3.43 (23.49) 

78.69 102.18 

222.12 78.69 

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert 
Director 

DIN: 07010883 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: May 31 , 2021 

J;.;~~1 
Direclor 
DrN: 02144586 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: May 3 I, 2021 



Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospilals Private Limited 

Notes to the financi::il statements ro,· the yc,1r ended March 31, 2021 

1. Company overview 

Narayana Vaishno Devi Spccial1y Hospitals Private Limited ('the Company') was incorporated on 
September 5, 2014 under !he provision~ of the Companies Act, 2013 . The Company is a wholly owned 
subsidiary ofNarayana H1wlay:ilayc1 IJi111iled. Tl1e Co111pany is engaged in establishing, promoting, owning, 
letting, managing and maintaining ho~;pitals, clinics, health centers, nursing home in all discipline of 
medicine and without limih1tio11 lo rnn <111(1 administer healthcare schemes. 

2. Basis of preparation of the financial statements 

2.1. Statement of compliance 

The financial statements have been prep:1red in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as 
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 20 IS notified under Section 133 of Companies 
Act 2013 (the 'Act') and other rclev;111t provisions and amendment rules issued thereafter. 

The financial statements were a11thori zed for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 
31,202]. 

Details of the Company 's accou11ti11 g po licies arc includecl in Note 3. 

2.2 Going concern 
Whilst the current liabiliLics ul llw Co11 1pany exceed its current assets as of March 31, 2021, the financial 
statements have been drmvn 11po11 ,1 )1 ,,ing concern basis in view of the support letter received from 
Narayana 1-Iruclayalaya Lilllite<!. the 1-l u!<l ing Company confirming their continued financial support to the 
Company to e11able it to co: 1tim: ,; i1~; 01,c, :1lions ,111d sell le its obligations as and when they become due over 
the next twelve-month pcriocl. 

2.3. Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements arc presented in Indian Rupees (Z), which is also the Company's functional 
currency. All amounts are prc:;enled in ' in lakhs, except sbare data and per share data unless otherwise 
stated. 

2.4. Basis of measurement 

The financial statements k1 ve bce11 prepared on the hi storical cost basis except for the following items: 

Items Measurement basis -- ------ - ---
Defined benefit liabili1y Present value of defined benefit obligations 

2.5. Use of estima(t'S and judgrncr,i; 

r 
In preparing these financial sl,1tcmc11ts , 111anagerncnt l1as maclc judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of ac.:co1111ti1 1g pc licies ancl the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and 
expenses . Actual results 1w1y differ f'ro111 these estimates. 



Narayana Vaishno Devi Spcci::Ity I lo:;pi1:, , Private Li111i1cd 

Notes to the tinanci:il stakml'L i~ r,,r i l:c :, ,_. ,; r ended !Via ;·ch 31, 2021 

Estimates a11d underlying c1ssump1io11:; are revie\\ud on :1n ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recogn is eel prospectivel y 

Judgments 
Information about judgments 11rnde in ,1p11lying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on 
the amounts recognised in the li11ancial statements is included in the following notes: 
Note 33 - Financial instruments 

Assumptions ,incl cstimatio11 u11certainti,,·s 
Information about assumptions anl! estimation uncei-ta111t1es that have significant risk of resulting m a 
material adjuslrncnt in the yc,11· ,·n(ling _, I March 2021 is included in the following notes: 

Note 26 - Dcf'crrecl tax :1ssvi/( li;ihii11~1 ) 

Note 31 - measurr..!ment 01· <H i:1, d k:wf , obligation; Ley actu:1rial assumptions 
Note 4 - uscf'til life of pro1 -,.·nv. pl ;,nt :1: ,,I equiprnenl 
Note 5,6,9, IO and 33 - reco~•1111i, 111 ul i11 i·,: 1irme11t of li11:111cial assets 

2.6. Measurement of fair value:-: 

A number of'the Company's ,1ccou11ti11~1 policies and clisclosmes require the measurement of fair values, for 
both financial and 11011-ti11a11ci:ii as se ts :rnd liabilities. 

Fair values arc categorized i1110 dilf'crc111 levels in a 1·air value hierarchy hased on the inputs used in the 
valuation techniques as follm-v:;: 

Level l : quoted pric<:s (un,1dju ;l ed) in active tnarkets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2: inputs o:l1n 1hrn1 q11111,]d prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, eithe1 di reel I, (u·., ,i: prices) or indirectly ( i.e. , derived frnm prices). 
Level 1: inputs liii· th l' a;;:: ,:1 or liability ihat are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inr,uh l 

When rneasming the fair vn!11c , ,f' ,111 a:: ,1 or a li,1bilit ; , the C urnpany uses observable market data as far as 
possible. If the inputs u~ cd 1,., 11 : :,1·;i1rc :::,• fair v,1lue <;f':111 assct (1r a liabilit) fall into different levels of the 
fair value hic1archy, the11 Lhc 1·:t1r 1:1iu1 ,,1easurc111e11t i.': catcy.ori;:ed in its c11tirety in the same level of the 
fair value hierarchy as tl1c lowl: •; l In cl i 1:11ut that is siF,nil1ca111 to the entire measurement. 

The Company recognises 11 ans I;;, .': l,c11.· ,:en levels or the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period during which the ,;hai1gt' h~1s ,1ccurred. Further information about the assumptions made in 
measuring fair values is includecl in 1hc ,ollowing notes: 

Note 33 -financial instrumcms 

3. Significant accounti11g pc!iu; 

3.1. Financial instruments 

a. Recognition and initial 11 :·:1:;u n·:1; 'Ii , 

~ 

Trade receivables are initi,illy ;ecoL>.ni :: ·d when they ;m• ori~111ated. All other financial assets and financial 
liabilities arc initially rcco,21,i::c.:d '-"h,·, ,.he Compa11,- lic..:cornes a parly to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 



Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Uospitai~ Private Li111itcd 

Notes to the financial statements !'or the :,'l'.;r ended March 31, 2021 

A financial ,1sset or financial liahilily ,·: initially mcc1smed al fair value plus, for an i1em not at fair value 
through profit and loss (FVTPI ,), lr:111s:1ction costs th<1t ,ire cliri.::ctly attribut:iblc to its acquisition or issue. 

b. Classification and suhscquu11 ml'nsu , (: ment 

Financial assets 

On initial recognition, a financial nsscl is classified c1s measured at 
amortised cost; 
FVTPL 

Financial assets are not reclass ified s1li1sequent to their initial recognition , except if and in the period the 
Company changes its business rnudel fc J1· managing financial assets. 

A financial asset is measure(! at :111w1 iised cost if ii meets both of' the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL: 

the asset is held wiihi 11 :: t·,-i ·:::H~ss model wlm;c ob_jcclive is to hold assets to collect contractual 
cash f'lows; and 
the contractual lcnn:; of' 11. l' 1, :1ancial asset give rise on specified elates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of'p1 i11cip:1I :1; J interest on the principal amount c1utstandi11g. 

All financial assets not d1 ~;:; if1d :1,; 111easured at rnnortisccl cost as described above are measured at 
FVTPL. On initial recognition , th e C '01npany 111ay irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise 
meets the requirements to be rne,1sun.:.rl ,tt am01tised cost at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly 
reduces an accounting mismatch (hat ,-.,,,Juld otherwise arise. 

Financial assets: Business model assessment 

Financial assets that are held for trncli11g or are managed and whose perf'ormance is evaluated on a fair 
value basis are measured at 1:v T'Pl , 

Financial assets: Assess111e11l whc(hr:1 1·<1ntractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. 

For the purposes of this asscs :; 111c1i1 ':)1 incipal' is clef111cd as the fair value of'the financial asset on initial 
recognition. ' Interest' is defined ,1. ,:,,nsideration fo1 the lime value of money and for the credit risk 
associated with the princi1,rll :1111,H1 11: 111tstanding dmi11g a particular perilld of time and fix other basic 
lending risks mid costs (e.g. , !iqu idi i,•, ,:: k and ad111i11i ~,t!'a tive cc,sts), as well as a profit margin. 

In assessing whether the cu11Lnict ti:1\ cash flows c11 c solely payments of principal and interest, the 
Company considers the co11lractu:1I ll'r111s of the ins1ru111ent. This includes assessing whether the financial 
asset contains a contractwi! t,.:1rn 1l1:1l <: luld change !he timing or amount of contractual cash flows such 
that it would not meet this crn1ditiu11. 111 making this assessment, the Company considers: 

contingent events thal wou!li cl1ange the arn\lllnt or timing of cash nows. 
ter111s that may adjust lhe C()11lrnctual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features. 
prepayment and exte11sio11 k,1t ures; and 
terms that limit the Co111p:111y·s claim to c:1sh flows frnrn speciffod assets (e.g., non- recourse 

features). 



Narayana Vaishno Devi Speciaity I fospiLd:; Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the yt•:1r ended M:,rch 31, 2021 

Financial assets: Subsequent measurc111cnt and gain,: and losses 

Financial assets at These :1sscts :11 l subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, 
--+-i_n_c_ll1C.l~1gi_1 11.\ i11 i.-rest or divid:ncl.J.!~u111c ,Jl.!:~ recoµ 11 iscd in rofit or loss. FVTPL 

Financial asscls at These :1ssct s ;:il' subsequen1ly measured nt amortised cost using the effective 
amortised cust interest rncllwd rhe amo1tiscd cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest 

income, fc) r1 ' ig11 <'\:change gai11s tllld losses and impairment are recognised in profit 
or los~ Any ~, ni :, :Jr loss on clercc~ilio_!l is i:_~~_£!:!Jsed in ro fit or loss. 

Financial liabilities: Classilic:1tio11. ,;u:, ;,::quent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial liabilities are mc:1sured ,1l :1111ortised cost using effective interest method. For trade and other 
payable maturing within 011c year 1'1rn11 the balance sheet date, 1he carrying value approximates fair value 
due to shorl maturity. 

c. Derecognition 

Financial assets 

The Company derecognises :1 f111: 11'.c i:,I asset whl:n !he cont, actual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or it lrnnsk •'.; tl:e rights to 1•xl'ive 1hc contractual cash flows in a transaction in 
which substrn,tially all of the risk:; ,:11,: rewards or ownersl1ip of the financial asset arc transferred or in 
which the Company neithn 1r;rn :;kr; ;; >r retains sul,slanti,illy all of the I isks and rewards of ownership 
and does noi retain control ()I 11ic 1;11;11, ··: al asset. 

If the Cornp,1ny enters inll, 1;·;rn ,,,1, :,l ,:1:; whereby i1 tnnsl'crs ,1sscts rccog11ised on its balance sheet but 
retains either a II or substan li a 11 y :ii I •.) ! , 11e risks and 1·c11 ards t1 rt he transfer, cd assets, the transferred assets 
are not derccognised. 

Financial liabilities 

The Company derecogniscs a li1; :lllcial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancel led or expire. 

The Company also clerecogni'.:es ;1 li1:a1:cial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under 
the modified terms are substa11Li,:ll 1· :li!Terent. In thi '.; rnse, u new fi11anci,1I liability based on the modified 
terms is recognised at fair v:1luc. !'lw .lifference h0,ween l11e carrying amount of the financial liability 
cxti11guislted and the 11ew fo1,111ci,il :i:!l iiity with modi lied term s is recognised in profit or loss. 

d. Offsetting 

Financial assets and finaiwi, .; li ;d, ,l,ti , , are offset . :u ,d the nd a,nount [)resented in the balance sheet 
when, and only when, the i o:11p:111: . 11, rently has a k1::aily cnh1rccable ri;•l1l lo set off the amounts and it 
intends either to settle them 011 a lll"i 1; -1 is or tn rea\i :;,: !he asset and settle tl1e liability simultaneously. 

V 



Narayana Vaishno lkvi Special1y llosp ii :· 1·, Private Li1:1iiccl 

Notes to the financial statements f'dr iiw y· : r ended M nn : 11 31, 2021 

3.2. Inventories 

The inventories of medical consurn :dil,,s, drugs ancl su rgical instruments are valued at lower of cost or net 
realizable value. In the absc11cc u/' :Illy further estimated costs of completion and estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale, tile !lCI realizable value is the selling price. The comparison of cost and net 
realizable is made on an item-hy-it,'. 111 basis. Cost or these inventories comprises of all costs of purchase 
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location after adjusting for value 
added tax wherever applicable., app!yi11g the first in first out method . 

3,3. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash ancl c,1sh equivalents co111p1 i\e 1:::sh at bank :rnd Oil h,1nd and short-term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months 01 le ·::; wl1:L·I; .,re subject to i11 :; ignilic,111t ri sk of changes in value. 

3.4. Cash tlow sb,tcmcnt 

Cash no,vs arc n·po1ted us;11,1 1h \· 1 1d : ,:ct method, 11 l1 ,:rcb) ncL loss before tax is adju sted for the effects 
of transactions or a non-cc1sl1 11:111 11 ,: .: 11d any defe11·, ils 01 accruals of past or future cash receipts or 
payments . The cash flows ! 10111 '.ljn a ting, investi11 g, and linancing activities of the Company are 
segregated. 

3.5. Revenue recognition 

Revenue fron1 operations 

The Company recognizes rrw~:nu c 1·rn!11 medical and heallhca1e services to patients, on sale of medical 
consumables and drugs within I.he l:os!,ilal premises ;111cl on pro viding services towards patient amenities. 

Revenue is measured at the l\1i1· vr1luc :, f the considernlion received or receivable. Revenue is recognized 
upon transrcr of co ntrol of prnrn1se, I I'; :iducts or services le; cu:; to111ers/pa tie11ts in an amount that reflects 
the considcr,1Lion we expect t,i 1L', l'i' ,· in exchangv for tl10SL' prnducts or services. Sales and Service 
Income exclude (Joods and Si:1 vi1:c 1·,, • (GST) and a1 c 11et cil' trade/ volun1c discounts, where applicable 

The Cornpanv has entered i111() opc 1 at :1, ' ~ and managc1: 1ent n.1uH:111c11ts with a, under which, the Company 
has ii right r1ver the man:1r~1:mc11l ,);, Tation and ulilization uf hospital f'3cilities owned by the trust. 
Further, as 1icr the agree111c11L !01 ll.c ,1 :;tial years, the :ictual loss i11curred by the Company will be funded 
till the amount determined by the t1 ·1 ::. t. This fundi11 g of loss has been recognized as "other operating 
revenue". 

'Unbilled revenue' represent:; vnlll(: ,i1 the extent uf rneclical and healthcare services rendered to the 
patients who are undergoing tre,1t111L'1 1i / observation rn1 the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the 
balance sheet date. 'U11earned revl:!11uc· comprises billings in the excess of earnings. 

Interest 

For all debt instruments rne;1:,ureLI c itl1, ,rat amortizell cost, intCl'e!,t income is recorded using the effective 
interest rate (EIR). EJR is the rat\.' tli,1! exactly discounts tl1c estimated l'utme cash payments or receipts 
over the expected life of tiw 1111 ,11 ,ci ;;: instrument or a shortl'r period, where appropriate, to the gross 
carrying amount of the fiirnnc:i,11 ,l'.,sc1 'l r to the amortized cost or· a financial liability. When calculating 
the effective i11tcrest rate. 11H: (': i1,1!, 1ny estimates lhe n~pcc ted cash flows by considering all the 
contractual icrms of the r·i11 :1:1c:i:il ill':!rument (for c'\.arn pl c, prepayme11t, extension, call and similar 
options) hut does not consider tl1c ·::! :.:cted credit lo:,'.;es. l11le1est income is included in other income in 
the state1T1c11t lll. profit and lo,':; 

V 



Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty ffospit;i!:, Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for 1l1l· yc:ir ended March 31, 2021 

3.6. Property, Plant and Equipm:.•111 

Recognition and 111easure111r'.n 1 

Property, plnnt, and equip1nc11t :11 \ · 1,,L·asured at cost which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less 
accumulated depreciation, :11 1c! i1n1 1,:i 1:1ent losses, if' r1ny. Th ,: cost of an item of Prope1ty, Plant and 
Equipment comprises its pmch,1sc 1\rin:. including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, 
freight, any directly attributahk cost oi bringing the ,1sset to its working condition for its intended use and 
estimated cost of dismantling arnl rc:; toring onsitc; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in 
arriving at the purchase price. Subscqtr cnt expenditures related lo an item of tangible fixed asset are added 
to its book value only if they incr,·,is,: the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously 
assessed standard of perfor111rn1ce. Co!;: includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
asset. 

Depreciation and a11101tization 

The Company depreciates property pl::nt, and equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-line 
basis from Lile date the assets ar<' r•: ;,.Jy for intended use. The estimated useful lives of assets for the 
current and comparative pcrioci 01 · ,;;!:' 1i ticant items or property. plant and i.:quipmcnt are as follows: 

Block of assets 

Electrica I i 11:,1 a I lation 

Medical equipment 

Ofiice equipment 

Other equipment including ,1i1 1.:oncl11i u1 1ers 

Furniture and fixtures 

Computers 

- -- - --- - -------
Useful life 

IO years 

13 years 

5 years 

\ 5 years 

10 years 

3 years 
--- - - - - ------ ---- - -

Depreciation methods, useful live '; :111d residual v,1lues are reviewed at each financial year-end and 
adjusted appropriately. 

The Company believes that ll1c use 1·u1 life as given above best represent the useful life of the assets based 
on the internal technical assessmen i ;11:cl these useful life are as prescribed under Pait C of Schedule II of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

The cost and related accumuhtecl c!c1 cciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or 
disposition or the asset and 11, -: re-:t:!I:•.:; gains or los~., :.s are recognized i11 the statement of profit and loss, 
Amounts paicl towards the ,:c'iui:;il :t· 1. ,ii' property, plant and equipme11t outstanding as of each reporting 
date are recognized as cap id ,H!'- :: ,. ' l' and the co:;l of prnpc1ty, pla11l, and equipmc11t 11ol ready for 
intended use before such dale ,m: di,, · )·;ed under capiial work- i11-prngres:;, 

3.7. Intangiblc assets 

Intangible a:,sets are stated ai co:;t I,,:;. accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are 
amortized over their respective esti 11: ilcd useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are 
available for use. 

Amo1tisation method 
The estimated useful life of ,lll ick1,lili:1.ble intangible asset is b,1sed on a number of factors including the 
effects of obsolescence, clerna11d , rn 11 ,petition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the 
industry and known tcchnologic,li :,,:\·:rnces) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain v· expected foture Clish fiow ..- In,,, , d ' asset. ... ,., 



Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hosp'. :: > Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for th .. · v<·ar ended March 31, 2021 

The estimated useful lives of i11tangilil,,s are as follows: 

Block of assets 

Computer software 

Amortisation method 
Useful life and residual value ,; ,11-c I' _ \'r ·wed at the end of each financial year. 

3.8. Employee benefits 

Short term cm ploycc benc Ii,, 

Useful life 

3 years 

E111ploycc benefits payable wholly \" i, ;1in twelve months of receiving services are classified as short-term 
e111ployee benefits. These hcndi1s i1wlude salary a11d wages, bonus, and ex-gratia. The lllldiscounted 
amount ofslio1i-ter111 empluyc1'. bc1 11'i 1;:; to be paid i11 exchange for employee services is recognized as an 
expense as the related service i:; rcn , .i,r-,,d by the employees. 

Post-employment benefits 

Defined contribution plam; 

A defined contribution p\,111 is j)(J .t- ,:mployment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified 
contributions to separate cnlily ,llhi i1: •; no obligatio11 to pay any further amounts. The Company makes 
specified obligations towatlb ·~mp 1, ,; ·:0 provident f"1111d and employee stnte insurance to Government 
administered provident fu11cl :-;ell ( ;:1 - and ESf scheme which is a deli11cd contribution plan. The 
Company's contributions arc rec(1 ,.• 11 !.,, ·d as an expense in the st.1te111ent of profit and loss during the 
period in which the employee t c1Hlu :; ' k: related sen' ice. 

Defined bc11efit plans 

The Comp.-ny's gratuity \i,~11,·f il ~' 1 11e is a defi1 1,• cl benefit 11lan. Tl1e Company's net obligation in 
respect of a defined benefit pl: ,n 1,. ·,, :nilated by estimating the amount of' future benelit that employees 
have earned and returned lcx sen >: ''; in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to 
determine its present value. The 1::: :,• ulation of Company's obligation under the plan is performed 
periodically hy an independent aclt1 :1: )· 11sing the projected unit credit method. 

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are 
recognised immediately in otl1n co1 ,1J,ci1ensive inc(lme (OCI) . Th1..: Company determines the net interest 
expense on the net defined li :1hilit y ,; ,:• the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the net 
defillud obli gati on at th bi..:,• i11ni11 :< , ! the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability. Net 
interest cxpvnsc and olh 'r 1..:. p•c!n ~c .. 1 ·l.1ted to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of 
profit. and loss. The Compan:' rec c' . 11:1.e · gains and iosses in the cu1tailme1tt ur selllement of a defined 
benefit plan when the curn1il11H:11t o ·: :11 lement occu1·s . 

When the hl! nefits o!' a pl,11 1 ;,1 •· c!1 
relates to past service or 1l1e .'. .t111 
profit and loss. 

Compensated absences 

,, .,•d or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that 
,,ss on curtai!111ent is 1-ccoµ.11ised im111ediately in the statement of 

The employees can carry-ft,n\1:1rcl ,, lli 11ion of the u11utilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it 
in future service periods or re,, ivc , ·,1: i I compensation on termination of employment. Since the employee 
has unconditional right to av:1il tl1c L', ve, the benefit is classified as a short-term employee benefit. The 
Company n.:cords an obligati (lll Ii ,,· ::uch compens;1ted absences in the period in which the employee 
renders the services that incn.:ase th i:: ,·11litlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent 
actuarial valuation using the: projccl• d ti nit credit method. 

V 



Narayana Vaislrno Devi Specinliy Ifo:,p :: : ::; Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statcmen(s for !h(' ·.'•·:: r ended March 31, 2021 

3.9. Earnings/ (loss) per share 

The basic earnings/ (loss) per· sh,1r·. i,. computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to equity 
shareholders for the period by 1 he\\ :: i;.dited average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

The Company does not have potcnli;il dilutive equity shares outstanding during the year. 

3.10. Impairment 

a. Impairment of financial instrnmcn :s 

The Company recognises loss ,11!, 1-.v:111ces for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at 
amortized cost. 

At each reporting date, (!11 : C: 01111 1:; 11 : assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost. A 
financial asset is 'credit ·· irn1iaircd · \hen one or more events that lwve a detrimental impact on the 
estimated future cash flows 01 · 1he f'i1::1 1 :1 :ial asset have occurred 

Evidence tlrnt a financial w;::el :s er, · :i, impaired includes the lc1 1!,1,.v ing tibservable data: 

significant financial c: ii fic11: 1 ., , 11· the borrower or issuer. 

the 1·estructuring ol :1 loa11 , <1 :1clvance by the Company on terms that the Company would not 
consider otherwise. 

it is probable that the bonm· c~1 will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or 

the disappearance 01· rn1 ,1cl i'. c market for a security because of financial difficulties. 

The Company measures loss allow;1.: 1.:•: ~; at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for 
the followi11g, which are mcasmcd :1.. : 2 month expected credit losses: 

debt securities that arc dclcrm i1 :1:,i io have low credit risk at lhc reporting date; and 

other debt securities and bank l ;1 rnces for which credit ri sk (i.e., the risk of default occurring over 
the expected life ofthe !'111:11H;i ' : 1strument) has not incre:i svd signilicantly since initial recognition . 

Loss allowances for trade 1cc,:i v;1lii 
losses. 

,c always measured at ,111 a111ou111 equal to lifetime expected credit 

Lifetime expected credit lo:;'.;,• :. ,ir,: !1 · expected credit losses 1hc11 result from all possible default events 
over the expected lif-c: of a iin ;;1 ,ci,1l · :1 1n1ment. 

12-month expected credit los:;cs ,1r, tl1c portion of expected credit losses that result from default events 
that are possible within 12 1rnrnths ·:!'i 1 T the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the 
instrument is less tha11 12 rno11!hs). 

In all cases, the maximum pc1·iod 1 ·c111sidered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum 
contractual period over which the ( ·, ,111 1,any is exposed to credil risk. 

When determining whether !hL: crdi : risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition and when csli111 :1ti Il l,'. l: ;_pccted credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and 
supportable information th, 11 i:, 1cl •, ::11l and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both 
quantitative ancl qualitative 1111"on11: • i1 :• and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and 
informed credit assessmeni ;11, ti i11 u :,l·,;g forward- looking infor111alio11. 

V 



Narayana Vaishno nevi Specially l lo:;p; ;_ -:Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statemenii: fnr 1h· · , :1 r ended March 31, 2021 

Measuremc11t of expected c1 ,· cli1 l,l:; : ,, 

Expected c1 i.:dit losses are a p1,,b,1!,i i· weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as 
the present va lue of ;ill ca.1:I: :;l ,: i1 ii·: ' · i.e., the difference betwec11 L11e c:1sh flows due 1u the Company in 
accordance with the c,mtrnc: ,:1,r! il 1. ,:: ·,h flows that the Company e;,;pcc1s to receive) . 

Prese11tation of allowance li,r ,.' .XlK't·• ,, ,:redit losses in the balance sheet. 

Loss allow;mces for financi,1! :1sSL', :,1easured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying 
amount of the assets . 

Write-off 

The gross carrying amount nl ;t li11 .: wial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that 
there is no realistic prospect 01· rcc n· ·1 -: . This is generally the case when the Company determines that the 
trade recci\'able does not h: 1vc as 1 , ,r sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to 
repay the rnnounts su bject t• l il1c 1\ , !· off. However, financial ,1ssets lhal are written off could still be 
subjed to enforcement acli , ilie:--: 1, ·der to comply with the Company's procedmcs for recovery of 
amounts clu e. 

b. lmpair1t1crd of' 11on-iim1Hc: ·, ·.:s::,· 

The Cornp,1•1y's 11011-fi n,rnci: 1! :1 :,:: : 

whether ilinc is any i11clic,:1,. J1, c,: 
amounl i:, csl irnated 

For irnp;.1irrnent testing, as:;,·t:; th;·,1 
cash-gencr:lling units (CCl ··:) 1 ;, 
inflows tha i are largely indcp1.:11d,:11 1 , 

, 1d inventories are reviewed at L·,1ch reporting date to determine 
·irrnent. If any such indicali c, n exist:,, then the;: Hsset's recoverable 

11ot generate independent cash infl ows are grouped together into 
'GU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash 
:he cash infl ovvs of other assets or CG Us. 

The recoverable amount 01 · :1 1 .. \il ' , , an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair 
value less ,~osts to sell. Vali1L i11 11 c is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their 
present val11e using a pre-la., clisc,. ,: , 1i cate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
monl!y and the risks specili ~: io tl1c · I (or the asset). 

A11 impainnent loss is rcL:c, •.1:is1·ti ihe carrying amount of ,111 asset or CCiU exceeds its estimated 
recoverabk :-1mo11nt. J111p,1ir 1 1! L': 1I. iu :. · are recognised in the state1ncnt or· profit and loss. 

3.11. Provisi(Jn:,, and con:i1igl', :·I . . 

Provision., :i re recog11izcd ,, l:l' ,i ti 1,· · · 

a past e\'enl. it is prclb,1blc 1' :1 ,111 J 

and a reliable cstimat ,; u rn '.H' t,!,1,i· 

The a111m1111 recogn1/.ecl ;1 s :, :) r"'- i 

present 1)b I igation at the ,::1 "I o :· 1' 
surrounding the obligatio11. 

:npany has a prr:sent obliga1ion (legal or constructive) as a result of 
'ow of econo111 ic benefits wi ii be required to settle the obligation, 

' ,1e amount of 1l1c obligatio1; , 

1 is the be!,t (:slimate o r tl1,· ccmsideratio11 required to settle the 
· .)porting period, taking 111 to account the risks <111d uncertainties 

When so111c or all of the ,· (':,11, )11 ,i• ',· 11efits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, the recc1v:1lJle i• : .. -ngnized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will 
be received , and the a111ou111 ol the 1, ·1vable can be measured reliably. 
Provisions for onerous con!ncLs ;m : c.·(>gnized when the expec.: Led benelits to be derived by the Company 
from a contrnct are lowi~r ll 1 ;1;; tlw ,. :: ·oidable costs of' meetin g the futme obligations under the contract. 
Prov is ions f"m onerous co1111 :1L: Is :11 : : · 1..:asured at the present value of l,Jwe1 of the expected net cost of 
fulfilling th 1

_' contract a11d thL ,~ ;: pee, ,:: , ost oftern1irn1ting the contract. 

v 



Narayana Vaish110 Devi SriccinH-.} fo: :p :::•: Private Limited 

Notes to the finaHcial statcmc11ts :·or 1Ji. , ,·:, ,1r ended March 31, 2021 

3.12. Other income 

Reimbursement of expenses :11 ::u1F ' .: . recognised on accrual basis as ' other income' . 

3.13. Income 1ax 

The Income-tax cxpe11se ,_: ,1: 11>·is .': : . ,ent tax and deferred tax . ll is recognized in profit and loss except 
to thl'. extent that is relates tn .11, 1k; , , ,· ognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

Deferred tax 

Defo1Tecl t,1.,; is recognizc ci 11, ,e~;pl ,{' temporary differences betweL:11 carrying amounts of' assets and 
liabilities fo1 · ffoanciai rep,1 : ii 1 ~ p::1 · .. ·sand the corresponding amoLmt~; used for taxation purposes. 

Deferred ta.,; liabilities are 1 :( C•!!,111,., :: ! or all taxable temporary differences. 
The carryin g amount of (kk , 1,.:d I: : ,, ,sets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is 1H; longer prcb~1h! :' ' h,1t .d! icient taxable profit will be available to allow all or pa1t of the 
deferred tax asset to be utili tl'(1 

Deferred ta x ass '~ and lialJi ii! ie~: , , . :11easured at the tax rates tlwl are expected to apply in the period 
when the ,1sscl i.· renlizcd ( ) ! ih,: · •ili ty ts . ettled , based on ii1 x rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacled or :-;•1b!-! t·,rnt ivcly c11:, <·, LCI :1! ,· .-cpcirting date. 

The rneasu1 crncnt of' clef(:, 1 ·· ! ' 11:. 

which the Compa11y cx pc :I .. ::, l ;1, 

and !111biliL ,.' '. i. 

: i els the tax consequences !hat would follow from the manner in 
,orting date, to recover m s::ttk the carrying amount of ils assets 

De1·errl'd U1.\ t1ssl't:. anL, ii,: h: ::,i t Jffset if there i.s a legslly l:11fon;eHble right to offset current tax 
liabilities n11d assets, a11d t it , , . . ,:!:,\, . :11co111e taxe .. levied by the s,1111c Lax authority on the same taxable 
emity, or 011 difforcnt lHx (: 111 i, ,•:~: . l , •: 1L:y intend lo settle current L1x li<1bilities and assets on a net basis, 
or their tax .; •;set~ and !i:ibiii i<: • \'. ii: ·, realized s imultaneously 

3.14. Leases 

y 

Leases umk:r which the C\l'il p,111 , , ::;umes substantially all the ri sks and rewards of ownership are 
classified :h fi11 nm.:e !c:1sc.:, .· ,i•ch ,: ,• i ; are ctq italizcd at fair valu•: of the asset or present value of the 
mini mum lea e pay11 1e11ts ,,, ,i>i i1: 1 , ,; lln of' l ite lease, whichever is lower. Ass(:)ts held under leases that 
do not transfer sL;bstanti :dl '.' :.:i 1Ji ,, 1 :; , and reward of ownership me not recognized in the balance sheet. 

Le11 sc pay111<:11ts unckr upu:1, i11g ir : 
and loss 011 :: s1rnight -li11 c 11 :1 1· : 1 1\ ·1 • 

line with the c~:pec1 ,~d g·;,; , t! : · 
increases 

.ire generally recognised a:; an expense i11 the statement of profit 
:..' term of kai:c unless such payll1ellls arc structured to increase in 
. ;oil to cornpc1;sate for ll1c ks,or ' '.; expected innationary cost 

:rest, tax, dep:·cciation alld a111onization (EBITDA) 

As perrnitkd by the Guiel ;1 f\,,; , the Revised ~;c!1edule VI lo the Companies Acl, 1956 (v\ hich is 
applicable (:ven in th e co11 t · 1 oi·' , 1 , 1ulc III to the Companies /\ct, 2013) the Company has elected to 
present cmnings befo cc i11tc1 l"'•. 1 <:· -> preciation, and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on 
the fac<:. of the statet11c11t ,,! ,,rnfi : , ,1 , ioss . In its measurement of EBTTDA, the Company includes other 
income bu! does not i11ciur!r: , i'-'I Jl'LT , , ,, ,n and amortization expense, l'inai1ce costs and tax expenses. 



Narayana Vaishno Devi Spcci:111 \ l lospi :, :; Private Limited 

Notes to the JinaJJcial statl-.mc11!;; :·(Jr ih<· :1r ended March 31, 2021 

3.16. Operating Cycle 

Based on the nature of prodt1cls / <di. ities of the Company ancl the normal time between acquisition of 
assets and their realisation in Gash c,1 l'.;1sh equivalents, the Company bas determined its operating cycle as 
12 months [or the purpose of classi I ic:;1l ion of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current. 

3.17 Recent pronouncements: 

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry (11" Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended 
Schedule II! of the Compani ci, Act l,)13. The amendments revise Division I, II and Ill of Schedule III 
and are applicable from April l, 2(J"'. i Key amendments relating to Division 11 which relate to companies 
whose financial statements ar~ rcq11 ;1-,·,I to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 
20 l 5 are: 

Bala11ce Sheet: 
• Lease liabilities should be '.>•c·1rn1-nt•_'I disclosed unde1· the head 'financial liabilities', duly distinguished 
as current or non-current. 
• l'crln in ndd it ion, il cli'.', e l,L11: :; i1, ' ·' ~w l.• 111 1.ml 01" changes in equity such as changes in equity share 
capi tal due I l pri1)1 pcrio I ~11', s ,111 ., 1, :,t:ilcd l til :rnces ,11 the beginning of the current reporting period . 
• Spei;;ified lormat f(1 r di s, lt i'it I e of'',,'· rd wldi 11 g of promoters. 
• Spl·cilied t" nn nt I'm a 1 •1 11~1• • chc< :' :, d. trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and 
intangible asset under d,~velop111c11t 

• If a company has not used 1·11ncl~: lo,· the specific pmpose for which it was borrowed from banks and 
financial ins1itutions, then cfo:closur,: ,,[ details of where it has been used. 
• Specific disclosure uncler ' addi ; i,. ,;1:il regulatory requirement· such as compliance with approved 
schemes of arrangements. cu111pli ;,i,.: ,: with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable 
prope1iy lllll held in nm11c ol co1 , ·, 1:y, loans and c1dvanccs to promoters, directors, key managerial 
personnel (KMP) and rela11c.,.i pntic tails ofbenami properly held etc . 

Siate111en1 of profit and lo:s 
• Additionai disclosures :· 'i,lli:w 
crypto or vi1tual curr(~\lC)' TC\ ;1 ·1c 1• • 

the financial statements. 

:,rporate Social Responsibiiity (CSR), undisclosed income and 
icr the head 'additional infcmna1ion· in the notes forming part of 

The amendments are ~xte11si11 c_ a:ici l!,,, Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required 
by law. 

\v 



Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

4 (i) Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets 
C' in bkhsl 

Gross block Accumulated dcorecislion/amnrtisalion Nrtblodc 
Particulars Asat Asat Asat Depreciation/ Asat Asat Asat 

Aoril I. 2020 Additions Deletions March 31.. 2021 Aoril I.. 2020 Amortisation Deletions March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 
Tangible assets* 

Electrical installations 4.86 - - 4.86 1.09 0.59 - 1.68 3.18 3.77 
Office equipments 0.75 - - 0.75 0.46 0.15 - 0.61 0.14 0.29 
Medical equipment 8.85 - - 8 85 1.65 0.68 - 2.33 6.52 7.20 
Other equipments including air conditioners 15.94 - - 15.94 2.59 I.OS - 3.64 12.30 13.35 
F umiture and fixtures 18.73 - - 18.73 8.25 1.38 - 9.63 9.10 10.48 
Computers J-7 02 - - 37.02 33.50 3.52 - 37.02 - 3.52 
Total tangible (A) 86.1S - . 86.IS 47.54 7.37 - 54.91 31.24 . 38.61 

Intangible assets* 
Computer software 0.23 - . 0.23 0.22 0.01 - 0.23 . 0.01 
Total intangible assets (B) 0.23 - - 0.23 0.22 0.01 . 0.23 . 0.01 

Grand Total{A+B) 86.38 - . 86.38 47.76 7.38 - SS.14 31.24 38.62 
• The assets are owned under an arrangement between Narayana Vaisho Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited with Shri Mata Vaishno Devi Shrine Board 

4 (ii) Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets 

Cross block Accumulated depreciation/amortisation Net block 
Particulars As at As at As at Depreciation/ As at Asat Asat 

Ap ril I, 2019 Additions OcletiOM ll'brdt 31, 2020 April L. 2019 Amortisation Deletions March 31, 2020 Ma rcb 31, 2020 MarcbJl,.2019 
Tangible assets* 

Electrical installations 4.86 - - 4 86 0.69 0.40 - 1.09 3.77 4.17 
Office equipments 0.75 - - 0.75 0.31 0.15 - 0.46 0.29 0.44 
Medical equipment 8.85 - 8.85 0.97 0.68 - 1.65 7.20 7 88 
Other equipments including air conditioners 15.94 - - 15.94 1.52 1.07 - 2.59 13.35 14.42 
Furniture and fixtures 18.73 - - 18.73 6.81 1.44 - 8.25 10.48 11.92 

Computers 37.02 - - 37 02 21.16 12.34 - 33.50 3.52 15 86 
Total (A) 86.IS - - 86.1S 31.46 16.08 . 47.54 38.61 54.69 

Intangible assets* 

Computer software 0.23 - - 0.23 0.14 0.08 . 0.22 0.01 0.09 

Total (B) 0.23 - - - 0.23 0.14 0.08 - 0.22 0.01 0.09 

Gnnd Total fA+Bl U .38 - - 86.38 31.60 16.16 - 47.76 38.62 54.78 r • The assets are owned under an arrangement between Narayana Vaisho Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited with Shri Mata Vaishno Devi Shrine Board 

\);~_ 
~\ 
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Nar.,,•11• Vllla]ln.o Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 
Nol• to II\• r1na.ncial 1tatements for t!\e year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

5 Lou.n, 

Particulars 

(U11securu.f, considered good unless otherwise stated) 

Nnn•cllrreut 
Tt, pt1r/ies 1Jll1er th,m relt1le,I pt1rlies 
Sccuril dcJ)O$it~ 

6 Other financial assets 

Particulars 

(a) No11-currenl 
To parties other lht1n related parties 
Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months from the reporting date) 

(b) Current 
To pt1rlies other than relt1/e,I pt1rlies 
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 
Unbilled revenue 
Receivable from Shrine Board 

7 Income lax assets (net) 

Particulars 

Tax deducted at SOlll'Cc 

8 Other assets 

Particulars 

(11) Nm, Curre11I 
To pt1rtie., other th,111 relt1/ed pt1rlie•· 
Prepaid expenses 

(b) Current 
To purlieo ot/,er ""'" re/11te,l putties 
Prepaid expenses 
Advance to vendors 

9 Inventories 

Particulars 

(V11/11a,I at lower of cost 11111/ net rea/1.mh/ff 1•11/11e) 

Medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 

Less: Provision for slow and non-movmg 

IO Trade receivables 

Particular. 

Un.!ic<iu.red, considnrnd good 
Unsecured, considered doubtful 

Loss allowance 
Unsecured, considered doubtful 

Net trade receivables 

The ompan 's exposure to credit and currency risks and loss 11llow,mcc5 are disclosed in note 33 

,u et 
M11rch 3 1 202 1 

2.55 
2.55 

As at 
MurcbJI 2.021 

1.00 
1.00 

52.92 
5.83 

58.7S 

As at 
Murch 3 1 202 1 

169.82 
169.82 

As at 
M11rcl1 .11 2021 

5.31 

5.31 

56.89 
32.66 
89,55 

As at 
Mnrcl,J I 2021 

202.30 
(14.77) 

187.53 

As at 
Moreb JI 2021 

815 .73 

85.87 
901.60 

(85.87) 
(85.87) 

815.73 

'fin lllklis 

A~ at 
M11rch 31 202U 

2.55 
2.55 

(' In lllkhs) 
As at 

March 31 2020 

3.03 
3.03 

0,06 

14.26 

225.21 

23!1.53 

('fin lakhs) 
As at 

Mnrch J I 2020 
214.8 1 

214.81 

('fin lakhs) 
As at 

March 31 2020 

57,33 
24.51 
81.84 

C"- in lnkl11) 
As nt 

Murch 31 2020 

241 00 
(27 77) 

213.23 

('fin lakhs) 

As •I 
nrcl1 31 2020 

1,005,08 

93.43 
1,098,51 

(93.43) 
(93.43) 

1,005.08 

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impainnent loss on portfolio of its trade receivable. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default 
rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every year end, the historically observed default rates are updated 
and changes in forward-looking estimates are analysed. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as 
given in the provision matrix. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows. 

V 



Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Ho■pit■ls Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

Cate~ory 

ESI/CGHS/SCHEMI;S 

Others 

11 Cash and bank balances 

Particulars 

(<t) Cash <1nd C11s/1 Eq<tivalento· 
Cashon hand 
Balance with banks 

•In current nccouuts 

(b) B11nk bul<,nces 11t/1er lh1111 11bove 

•I n tlopo~it nccounfs (duo to moture with in 12 months of the rcponlng dnte)• 

•The above deposit,, are restrictive as it relates to deposits against guarantees 

Within due date 

3.81% 
0.75% 

For tho purpose of the statement of cu~ I, llows, cash and cash cquh•nlcm comprlso the fo llowin11:,: 

Particulars 

C:aah on hand 

Balance with banks 
-In current accounts 

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 

12 Equity share capital 

Particulars 

Authorised 

30,00,000 equity shares (previous year: 30,00,000 equity shares) off 10 each 

Issue,/, subscribed 11nd p11id up 

10,00,000 0<1ulty shares (previous yenrl 10,00,000 cquhy shores) on 10 each 

(i) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Particulars 

At the beginning of the year 

Issued during the year 

At the end or the year 

(ii) Rights, preference and restriction attached to equity shares 

As at March l l , 2021 

Number ofshnrc!s Amount 
1,000,000 100,00 

i ,000.000 100 00 

A 1ci 11 
D11e date to I Vea r 

14.94% 

13.82% 

Asat 
l\br-ch 31 202 J 

1.10 

221.02 

222. 11 

2.50 
2.50 

As at 
March 3 1 2021 

1 10 

221.02 

222.12 

As at 
March 31 2021 

300.00 

100.00 

I00.00 

More than I Year 

33,06% 

44 81% 

(,h, l11ld1S) 

As at 
Mnrob 31 2020 

3.12 

75.57 
78.69 

2.25 
2:2s 

(t in 11,khs) 

As at 
Marc h JI 2020 

,12 

75.57 
78.69 

<' in lakhs) 
As at 

March JI 2020 

300.00 

100.00 
100.00 

(' in lakhs except for number o f slrn res) 

As at M 11rcl1 JI , 2020 

Number of Jhlll'cs 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

Number of shore• 

10.00 

10 00 

The Company has a single class of equity shares referred to as equity shares having a nominal value on' 10 each Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard 
to dividend and share in the Company's residual assets. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend 
as declared from time to time. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuring Annual General Meeting. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential 
amounts, The distribution will be in pl'Oportion to the number of equity shares held by shoroholders. 

(iii) Shares held by Holdint: umpuny 

Particulars 

Naruyann I lnidnyafoyn Limited 

(iv) rnrtk ulnr8 of shareholders holding more than 5% s lrnres: 
Particulars 

Nnmynun Hruduy ,lnyn Limited 

/\• al March 31, 2021 

Nu 111 bu of shares Arnu u11t 

999,795 99,98 

As at March 31, 2021 

Number or shares• 

999,7~5 
¾ holdlnJ! 

99.98% 

<' in lakhs except for number ohh•re:s) 

A• at March 31, 2020 

Number or slrnre., 

999,795 

As at March 31 , 2020 

Number of shores• 

999:795 

Amount 

99.98 

% hold ing 
99.98% 

The Company has not bought back any shares during the period from the date of incorporation i.e. September 5, 2014 lo March 31 , 2021. Funher, the Company has not 
issued any bonus shares or shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period from the date of incorporation September 5, 2014 to March 31, 2021. r• Note: Number of shares excludes 205 shares held by registered shareholders holding on behalf of beneficial shareholder i.e. Narayana Hrudayalaya ~~~~it~•-~-- ---

,• 



Narayan■ Val■hno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statement, for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

13 Other K<tuity 

Particulars 

( i) Reserves nnd surplus 
Retained earnings 
At the commencement of the year 
Add: Net profit/ (loss) after tax transferred from statement of profit and loss 
At the end of the year 

(ii) Other Comprehensive Income 
At the commencement of the year 
Add: Addition during the year 
At the end of the year 

RotAinetl earnings 
Retained earnings represents undistributed earning/ (losses), 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Other Comprehensive Income represents actuarial gain or loss or re-measurement of defined benefits obligation. 

14 Other liabilities 

Particulars 

(a) Non-current 
Tt, parties other th1m rel11teil p11rtie., 
Deferred liability for assets funding 

(b) Current 
To purtie.· other th1111 re/11tetl p11rtie., 

Defe1Ted liability for assets funding 
Contract Liabilities 
Unearned Revenue 
Balances due to government/statutory authorities 
Other liabilities 

15 Provisions (refer note ll) 

Particulars 

(11) on-current 
Provision for employee benefits 
Gratuity 

(b) Current 
Provision for employee benefits 
Gratuity 
CnmpenJntcd absences 

16 Trade p11yubl CJ1 

Particulars 

Tomi outstanding dues of micro 01111,f]Jl'ises and sm•II enterprises (refer note J2) 
Tomi 011ts1nndin11 dues of creditors othur than micro entcTrises and small 011teT1'1>0< 

Note: pay;,bles to related pu n ies [refer note 27 (c)J 

¥ he Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payable is disclosed in note 33 

Asat 
MHrch JI 2021 

(190.71) 

22.62 
( 168.09) 

(10.24) 
{22.4 1) 

{32.6S) 

200.74 

Asat 
MnrchJI 202 1 

28,27 

28.27 

3.79 
0.42 
0.35 

41 ,33 

~5.89 

Asat 
M nrch JI 202J 

41.21 
41.21 

9 63 
43,67 
53.J(l 

As at 
March 31 201.1 

0.16 
1,5 18.01 

1,518.1 7 

~ In h1kh5) 
As at 

M nrcli 3 1 2020 

(137 47) 
(SJ.24) 

( 190.71) 

(1.44) 
(8,80) 

( 10.~4) 

100.95 

('° In lukhs) 
As at 

Murch JI 2020 

31 73 

31.73 

7 41 
18.83 
2.46 

46,79 
250,00 

325.49 

(' In lnkhs) 
As at 

MA rd1 3 1 2020 

19.63 
19.63 

2.83 
48,99 
51.82 

('° in lakhs) 
As at 

Mnrcb 31 21120 
47.68 

1,504.23 
l,~!i l.91 



Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private l .• imlted 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

17 Revenue from opern lions (l' in In khs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2021 March 3 ·1, 2020 

Income from medical and healthcare services 6,128.94 6,604.28 
Sale of medical consumables and drugs 212.23 368.78 
Other operating revenue: 

Vinbilll)'. sae fund in& income (rcfor note 30) 1,025.20 76726 
7,366.37 7,740.32 

(i) Category of Customer 
Cash 3,192.51 3,899.90 
Credit 4.173 .86 '.1 ,840.42 
Total 7,366.37 7,740.32 

(ii) Nature of treatment 
In-patient 4,994.60 4,921.44 
Out-patient 1,134.34 1,682.84 
Sale of medical consumables and drugs 212.23 368 78 
Others 1,025.20 767.26 
Total 7,366.37 7,740.32 

(iii) The revenue from rendering Medical and Healthcare services and Pharmaceutical products satisfies 'at a point in time' recognition criteria 
as prescribed by Ind AS 115 

(iv) Revenue from sale of medical and healthcare services is net ofrebates /incentives/discounts for the year ended March 31, 2021 amounting 
to f 458 .14 lakhs (March 31 , 2020: '{ 587.42 lakhs) 

(v) Transaction price allocntcd to the rcmalni1114 pc r fo r m1u1ce ohllgotlons 

Particulars 

Contract Liabilities 

(vi) Use of Practical expedients 
Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations 

For the year ended 
Morch JI 2021 

0.42 
0.42 

(! in lukhs) 
For the year ended 

M>1rch 3.1 2020 
18 .83 
18.83 

The Corn pany has applied the pruotical expedient with res peel to non disclosure of information in respect of remaining performance 
obl igations considering the foci that the company's performance obligations, i.e. the treatment in case of healthcare segment has an original 
expected durotio11 or one year or less 

18 Other income 

19 

Particulars 

Interest income on 
- Bank deposits 

- Income Tax Refund 
Provisions no longer required written back 
Miscellaneous income 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

0.47 
13.00 
38.53 

3,98 

55.98 

Changes in inventories of mctllcol consumalil~s, drugs and surgical instruments• incrensc/(tlccre11sc) 

Particulars 

Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Inventory at the end of the year 

For the year ended 
March 31 , 2021 

213.23 
187.53 
25.70 

(! in lakhs) 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 

1.88 
4.74 

4.17 

10.79 

(fin l:1kh. ) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

309.56 
213.23 

96.33 



Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

20 Employee benefits ,expense 

Particulars 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
Gratuity expenses 
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 31) 
Staff wclfnre cxpens<-'S 

' ' 

21 Other expenses 

Particulars 

Hospital operating expenses 
Power and fuel 
Hospital general expenses 
House keeping expenses 
Patient welfare expenses 
Rent (refer note 25) 
Biomedical wastage expenses 
Medical gas charges 
Repairs and maintenance 

- Hospital equipments 
- Buildings 
- Others 

AdminiJ·trative expenses 
Travelling and conveyance 
Printing and stationery 
Advertisement and publicity 
Rent (refer note 25) 

Legal and professional fees (Refer note (i) below) 
Security charges 
Telephone and communication 
Bank charges 
Insurance 
Rates and taxes 
Business promotion 
Provision for loss allowance 
Had receivables written off 
Miscellaneous expenses 

(i) Payment to auditors• 

Particulars 

As an auditor 
Audit fee 

•excluding goods and service tax 

22 Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Particulars 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4) 
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

1,324.22 
6.73 

99.08 
56.24 

1,486.27 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

341.97 

72.29 
310.60 

107.06 
61.38 
20.88 

45.66 

270.41 
10.89 

271.48 
1,512.62 

27.60 
49.33 

31.30 
40,29 

33.75 
109.45 
31.93 

16.26 

47.85 
7 .53 
1.63 

(7.56) 
23 .35 

43. 16 
455.87 

1,968.49 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

1.00 

1.00 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

7.37 
0.01 

7.38 

(~ in lnkbs) 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 

1,429.06 
5.17 

87.99 
17.96 

1,540.18 

(tin lnkhs) 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 

386.62 

68-49 
306.55 
112.69 

77.68 
18.15 

6.31 

287 .66 
13 .02 

230,72 

1,507.89 

92.21 
61.91 

54.39 
11 61 

20.25 
126.29 
33 .29 

19 57 

47.30 
3.64 

34.57 
58.31 

26.47 

589.81 

2,097.70 

(! in lakhs) 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 

1.00 

1.00 

(~ in lakhs) 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 

16,08 

0.08 

16.16 



Narayana Vaishno Devi S11eclal1y Hospitals Prlvnk Limited 
Notes to the financial sta1emi,nt..~ for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

23 Contingent liabilities and commitments 

(I) Contingent liabilities 
The Company does nol have any contingenl liability as on March 31, 2021 {previous year - Nil) 

Commitments: 
Estimated amounls of contracts remaining 10 be execute<! on capital account (nel of advances) and 1101 provided amounls to f Nil (previous year: f Nil). 

24 Segment reporting 

Operating Segments 
Ind AS I 08 "Operating Segment" ("Ind AS 108") establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report infonnation about operating segments 

and related disclosures aboul products and services, geographic areas, and major cuslomers. Based on the "management approach" as defined in Ind AS 108, 

Operaling segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM 

evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources on overall basis. The Company's sole operating segment is therefore 'Medical and Healthcare 

Services'. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in the financial statemenlS. 

Geogra11hical information 
Geographical nformntion unnlyscs the Com1mny's revenue nnd non-current t1$SuL~. by the Company's country of clomiclk (I.e. lndin) and other count ri~s. In 
presenting lhc gcogrnplticnl inform ntlou, scgmenl revenue hus been bused on the geographical locat ion of the customer nnd Se1Jmen1 assets which hnvc bcell bnsed 
011 the gcogmphlcal locnl ion of the nssels. Since the Company lms only one gcogra11hical lru:n1lo11 , i.e. India , with respect to locution of assets nnd loc:11 on of 
customers, furt her demlls of gcowuphical intbrmntion is not npplicablc. 

25 Leases 
The Company hos ndo111~d In I AS 116 'l,cnscs' with \he date of initial upplicalmn being April I, 20 19 Ind AS l 16 replnccs Ind AS 17 - I.cases and rclnlcd 
i111cqm:lalion 1md !lLlidnnc~. TI1e Company has applfcd Ind AS I 16 u~l 11g 1hc modified retrospective approach. under which the cumula1ive ~m:ct of 111 hial 
appllca1ic.m is to be rccoi;uisod in mraincd earning, u1 Apl'il 1, 2019. The Co111pn11y has ev;il uated thcc1Tco1 of Intl AS 116 on the li 11ancinl sta1emcn1s nnd concluded 
thut there is no mntcnal i111pact on Statcmon, of l'r lit Ul1(1 loss. 

(i) Amounts recognised in statement ofpiol1t and loss towards short term l=cs: 

Pa rticu la rs 

Canoc llnblc 

26 Income tax 

(a) Amount recognised in srntemcnt or profit nnd los5 

Particulars 

Current tax 
-Current cm· 

Tax expense ror the ycnr 

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 

(b) Dcrcrretl tax n sets nnd liabiHtl l!!l nrc nllribulnblc to I.he following: 

Particulars 

Deferred tax asset 
Provision for doubtful receivables 
Provlsion for gratu11y 
Provision for compensated absences 
Provision for slow & non moving invenlory 
Bonus payable 
Tolll l deferred tax asset 

Deferred tax liability 
Excess of depreciation on fixed asset under Income Tax Act, 1961 over Llcpreciatlon under Companies Act, 
2013 

Total tlcfcrrcd tax liability 

Dercrrcd tax asset (uct) 

For the year ended 

M11rch JI , 2021 
101.67 
101.67 

For the year ended 
31 Morch 2021 

7.34 
7.34 

As at 
March 31 2021 

(1.85) 
12.60 
10.86 
(3 18) 
26.$0 
45.23 

(1 00) 

(1.llO) 

44.23 

('< in lakhs) 
For the year ended 

Mll rch 31, 2020 
89,29 
89.29 

~ in lnkhs) 
For the year ended 

31 March 2020 

2.97 
2.97 

('< in lakh ) 

As at 
lurch 31 2020 

22.87 
5 65 

12 16 
6.80 

26 80 
74.'28 

(1.10) 

(1.10) 

73.18 

Deferred tax assets has not been recognised because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Company can use the benefits 

~ thereon. 

.. / 

l 
I 



Nar■y•~• V■lshno Devi Speolalty Ho1pital.1 Private Limited 
Not .. to the nnancial statements for the year ended March JI, 2021 (continued) 

27 Related party dlsclosureJ 

(a) Delaib or related 11•rtl<1 

Nnlure. orrel111i o11_.h1r, Name or related parties 

fintenmsc lmvinn. c0ntl'01 over thu Ccnmnnv Nnm,•,,uo I iflldnvola,11 L1 milcd 
Key Mnn"llemcut Personnel (KMP) Dr jimnmnuel l{upcri • Director 

Viren Prasad Shetty-Director 
Or Dovi Prosmi Shcll:r Dileator 

Key M1111agement Personnel (KMP) of the Holding 
Dr.f!mmanuei Rupcrt-MnMgmg Dlrootorofthe HoWmg Company 

Company Sridhnr S - Compw,y Secretary of the Holding Compa.ny 
KC.lllvnn Vmrnucno.lnn- Chier ~~lnoooinl Onie-er or the Holdrnu. Comoan)' 

Fellow SubOldinncs M'erichnn ~!edioul Roseorch & HQiJiitol Lunned (MM ill lL) 
Ne.rayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited (NHSHPL) 
Narayan• Institute for Advanced Research Private Limited (NJARPL) 
Nnraynnn Cayman Holdings Ltd (NCHL) 
1 lenlth City Cayman Islands Ltd (HCC!) 
Nnra~•"" Hospitals Private Limited (NHPL) 
Nara)'lllm Health Institutions Private Limited (NHIPL) 
NI I Health Bangladesh Private Limited (NHDPL) 
Narayana Holdings Private Limited (NHPL, Mauritius) 
Namyllllu lleal1l1 NMb America LLC 

811111y under control/ joint control of KMP/KMP of Nnrnyann llrudoyaloyn floundn1ion 
Holding company and their relatives Amnrvll), Heolihcan, Private l.un'11cd 
Assooloto of Hold Ina Company Tr1mcclx lntlm Private L1mltct.l 

(bl T rnu,netlo111 with rel111ed tin,•ty for the vear ended Mnrt h JI, 101 1 
·1'rn n.1Hic-llm1:1 E11terpl'lu having control over Fellow Sub,idlaries As,ociote or Holding 

the Company 

Rrim.l.iun, 111e.111 or exnew:t~ 

Nnrny111m Hrudayalaya Limited 
93 17 

(7•1.ll [. 

Snle of medical ~1oreJ1 nml Co11.1111n1lh11!.S/ L,nb Services 

Nnruym1n Hrudayalaya Limited 
5 86 

(2 7 1) (·) 

I Namynna Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private . 0.22 
Limiled [N1 ISll l'L) (·) (·l 
Purchw.se or mt!dh:n l stores and Consum Jtblcs/Lab Scrvkt~ 

l'Nllf0y11na Hrudayalaya Limited 
8 99 

(·) (·) 

N[u'tl~1Ulll Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private 22 72 
l.unlu,a (NHSHPL) (·) (! .GO) 
Men~inn Medical Research & Hospital Limited . 0 30 
(MMRI IL) (·) (·\ 

Amaryllis Healthcare Private Limited 
(-) H 

Rclawsa ofCuri1orrm., gum1rnu.1~ ~h•en bv the hohJlnl CIHIIIJIIU)' 

Nnmyrum Hrudayalay• Limited 
'l.'.i0,00 . 

(- H 
Figures In bmokcl are for 1hc previous year 

c:l TJ1e l.u1la111 c.e1 roccivnhla from nud nnv11hlc U> rrb,t~d m1r1ira 
E.11ter11rise. having c.onlrul over Fellow SubsidiarieJ 

Balantes the Comp•ny 

TrQdo Pn,,n blH 

N1,r11ya11n Hrudayalaya Limiled 
28 99 

(33.ZS) 

Amnryll1s Healthcare Private Limited 
. 

(·) 
Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private 
Limited (NHSHPL) (·) 
Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited . 
(MMIU-11 ,) (· ' 

Toto! 
28.99 

(JJ.251 
Corpora It 211•r11.tt h.!u Je.i\len hy 1lw huldin2 coinnnny 

Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited 
(250 00 

l·1gure~ m bracket are for tho previous year 

Note: 
(a) No amount in respect of related parties have been written off/back or provided for during the year 
(b) Related party relationships have been identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors 

. 
0 
. 

·) 
14 55 

(2 60) 

O 30 

l-l 
JU~ 

(2.40} 

(.) 

compnny 

(. 

. 
(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

-
(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(· 

Associate of Holding 
company 

. 
(-) 

(·) 

!·) 

(·) 

( . ) 

(. 

1' In lmkh$) 
Entity under controV joint Total 
eontrol orKMP and their 

l"tll lltl\lC!.I 

. 93 17 

(- (14 l3l 

5 86 

(·) (2 7 1) 

0 22 
(-) (-) 

. 8 99 

(·) (-) 
. 22 72 

(·) (2 60) 

0 30 
(·) (·) 

66 35 6fr.35 

(1 2.91>) (12 .99) 

. 2S0.00 
(·) (·) 

Entity under ton troll join I Total 
control or KMP and their 

relatives 

. 28 99 
(· ) (33 25) 

0 95 0 95 
(1_~9) (I 4g) 

14 ss 
(·) (Z 60) 
. (J.JO 

[.) i'-) 
0.95 44.79 

(1 .49) (l7,J 4) 

. . 
(- (250 OO) 

('c) The terms and conditions of the transactions with related parties were no more favourable than those available or those which might be reasonably be expected to be available in respect of V ilar transactions with other than related entities on an anns length baslS 



Nar11yana Veishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 
Notes to the tinancl11I statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

28 Earnings per share 

Basic and diluted earnings per share 
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per share ror che year ended ended March 31 , 2021 was based on profit/ (loss) attributable to equity shareholders of'{ 22 62 
lakhs (Previous year: '{ (53.24) lakhs) and weighted itveragc number of equi ty share outstanding 10,00,000 (Previous year: I0,00,000). 

Particulars 

Profit / (loss) for the year 

Weighted avernge number of cq11lty l111res (bnsic/diluled) 

Shnrcs 
Total number of shares outstanding 
Effect of shares issued during the year 
Weighted average number of equity share 

13asic und diluted loss per share ('fl 
(Nominal value per share'{ I 0) 

29 Capital management 

('° in lnkhs, except no of shnrcs) 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021 

22.62 

As at 
Mnrclt 3 l 2021 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

2.26 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

(53.24) 

As at 
Mnrch 31 2020 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

(5 32) 

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. 
Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the debt to total equity ratio The Company is equity financed as evident from the capital 
structure below. There are no borrowings from any financial institution/organisation. 

The capt la I structure u~ of March 3 I, 2021 and March 3 I . 2020 wos as fo l lows: 

Particulars 

Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company 
As a percentage of total capital 
Borrowings from financial institution and organisation 
Total borrowings 
As a percentage of total capital 

Tot11l capital (Equity and Borrowings) 

As at 
Murch 31 2021 

(100.74) 
100% 

(100.74) 

(t in lakhs) 
As at 

Mo rch 31 2020 
( 100.95) 

100% 

(100.9S) 

30 The Comp my entered into u Concession Agreement. with Shri Mntu Vnishno Dev! Shrine Board ("lhe trust") to operate, maintain and manage u 230 bed multi specia lty hospi tal 
on public pr ivate partnership model. '!'he Compuny s requi red 10 pay concession foes to trust as mutually ogrecd, duri ng the period of agreement l'he trust has invested and 
111curred cnp1wJ costs to set up/ establish 230 l,ed mult i specialty hospita l nnd hos re imbursed costs incurred by the ompany lbr providing technical assistance durm!\ the 
rel\1rbishmcnt md commissioning period to the extent oft 50.00 lnkhs 1''hc period or agreement 1s 2 1 Ycnrs from the ommcrciol Operation Dote ( OD which is April 20 16 

E.lfcct.ive from the Commcrcml operations date l OD). the Authority sholl pro vide Vmbtl11 y Gnp Funding ("VGF"), in the form of fi nancial 11ssistnnc to cover expected 
cxpendltu rc nnd losses. to 1.hc ompany ror n maximum period of 5 cars from the COO on aclm11 bas is subJecl to 11 cumulative maximum umou111 of' '(' 4,500 lakhs. During 
the prcv1m1s year !he Authority hod f11rthcr approved and mcreo~ed lhc ·above mennoncd cumulative maxim um to"{ 5, 170 lokhs. The Slmne Board has expressed their in­
principal ugrccmonl lo release the Addiuonnl amou nts 111 the due course of t1111c as per tJ,c conco~sion agreement um! bused on lhe hospi\al 's actuul requiremclll und the lloard's 
cash-flows. 

The Vinbil 1ty Unp unding accounted so far is as below: 
l'ortit ulnrs 
Other Opemling revenue under Revenue from Operations 
Other Operating revenue under Revenue from Operations 
Other Operating revenue under Revenue from Operations 
Other Operating revenue under Revenue from Operations 
Other Operating revenue under Revenue from Operations 

Other financial assets include VGF receivable from Shrine Board of'{ 5.83 lakhs as on March 31, 2021 

V 

Vinn11ci11I Vear 
16- 17 
17-18 
18-19 
19-20 
20-21 

in lolc.b .) 
1,441 79 
1,116.06 
1,181.98 

767 26 
1,025.20 



Narayan• Val,hno Devi Specialty Ho,pitals Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statement, for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

31 Employee benefits 

A. Defined benelit plan 
The Company makes contri buuon$ 1ownrds 1u•ovident fund and employee state insurance to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. Under the plan, the Company is 
requin:=d to COnl ribute a specirlod porccntngti of payroll cost to the retirement benefit plan lo fund lhe benefits. 

The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance during the year aggregated to ~ 92.34 lakhs (previous year: t 82 82 lakhs) 

1110 Comrumyoperntcs r0J t•~mployrnm1, dcfi1u:d bc.nefi t plan t1uu pruV1do sm1L1hy ~riu., gmtu l1y plrm aiu1cl ~1 u.11 omplo)"W. wha h11.S rnndvreiJ nt le11St ri11c }'a.nr:s- ofi;:cml ri11ouJ 11C1vioc, lo recc.,va 01,e­
holf 1no1,1 h'• ,nlnry for oaoh )'<! r of' c:omplctcd sc:rv1oe at the 111 ne or n,tirc:mcnli'C-'1 11. Tlus l<lhcino" non l\rndud. 11,c Company'• obllw11ion in rc11pcc1 of tho g1·01ulty plan, which,. o de/\m:d ben• fi t 
1>hm, rs provided ror based on nctuarlnl vnlun ti011 cnl'nt.-d out by nn mdepenclc,,1 notuary u31ng tho pmjactcd Un ll arcrl1l mi,thod The Comprmy n1cognl:1.e.s ucrnmfol 1p11n, nnd IOJ$C8 1mmcd1utely m 
th1.: stnfen11111t of profit and hu.s, 'l11c Curnpnny ntcl'ucs g1111uity n~ per 1he pmvislo,111 of the J'11y1t1w11 or Grntui ly Aot, 1972 115 n111,hcnblc as n1 the hlllancc $heel d(tlc ond nccordmHIY the 111ax1m11m 
1mymon1 i, ro•trlotcd 1.0 r 20 lnkh, 

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respecL, the following table sets out the status or the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as at balance 
sheet date: 

Particulars 

Net defined benefit liability 
t 1obi l11y fo r comronwtod ob~••••~ 
To!ol emph,y•e bcncOI lloblllt y 
Nnn -currn11t 
Curnint 

B. Reconciliation of net defined benefit (assets) liability 

A,at 

M11reh 31, 2021 
50 8•1 
•IJ ,<,7 
94.51 
41 21 
53.30 

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components 

l) Reconciliation or pre.1au1 values of defined benefit obBgntln n 

Particulars 

Defined benefit obli&at1011 as at I A]irll 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Benefits Payment directly by employer 
Change in actuarial assumption 
-changes in demographic assumptions 
-changes in financial assumptions 
-experience adjustments 
Defined bener.t 11bTIG•llo 11, ru at 31 Mn,·t h 

ii) llect> 11 c:.ULIUon of present values or plan assets 

Particulan 

Plan assets Rt beginning of the year 
Contribulions paid into the plan 
Interest income 
Benefits paid 
Return on plan assets 
Phut aueb at tha e:ud ur 1h r. tciu· 

Net tl ofin •d houefil llnblllty 

C. I) Ei prnH r~cosnised t11 11 1n1e1111rnt or pront and LuH 

Particular, 

Current service cost 
ln.ic:rCJSI cost 

il) Reml!11J 11 ~ u1 enl• recosnbcd In ulh("r 1;: (H)IJ>reh f! n~ivtl' In come 

Particulan 

Ac1unnnl (gains)/ loss on donned benefit obligation 
Return on plan assets excludin.'l. interest income 

A, at 

Mnrci, JI 2021 
22.'16 

5 61 

I 13 
(077) 

6,91 

417 
11 33 
50.84 

Asal 
March 31, 2021 

50.84 

lo"o,. the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

5 61 

1.13 
6.74 

For tht', year ended 
March J I, 202 1 

22 41 

22.41 

A,at 
Morch J I 2020 

2.2,46 
4899 
71.45 

1963 
51 82 

(~ In lnkl••J 
A, al 

Mnrtl, 31 , 2020 

12,20 
4 36 

0 81 

(3 71) 

(491) 
I 54 

12 17 

22.46 

(' in lakl1s) 

Asal 
March 31, 2020 

ll.4 6 

(' 111 lllkhs) 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 

4 36 
0 81 

5.17 

({ lu lnkh•) 
For the year ended 

March JI , 1020 
8 80 

8.80 

_.., , ••:-·~8('/ : V 
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~ 
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Narayan a Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospital, Private Limited 
Notes to the linanclal statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

D. Delined Benelit obligation 
i) Actuarial a1J1111mptions 
T1hc follywmg ore 1he pru\c.1pt1I Mlu11tiul ns1'umplion~ 

0

at the rcpurting dO:,C (expressed o9 woiijhlcd nvorage.s): 

PrincipRI actuarial anumptions 

Attrition rate 

Discount rate 

Mortality table 

Future salary increases 

Assumptions regarding future mortality are bn.wd on published statistics and mortality ta.bles 

MnlurUy pro Iii~ o( defined b~ntfil obli gacton 

PArticulors 

I st followi ng year 
2nd following year 

3rd following year 

4th following year 
5th following year 
Year 6 to 10 

More thnn 10 e;,rs 
As at March 31, 2021, tho average durntion of the defined benefit oblil,'lllion• was 3. 14 years (March 31, 2020: 2.46 years) 

ii) Sensitivity analysi! 

A, at 

Moreb JI 1021 
Upto Lcv,I 6 s 32~~ 

Level 7 and above= 26% 

5 34% 
IALM (2012-14) Ultimate 

Firsl year 7,90% thereafter 6% 

A, at 
Mnrch 31 2020 

61.00% 

5 35% 

!ALM (2012-14) Ultimate 
First year 0% thereafter 6% 

(tin lakhs) 

9 63 
11 14 

9 32 
8 24 

6 22 
13 36 
3 58 

Reasonably possible changes al the reporting dale to one of the relevanl actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected lhe defined benefit obligation by the 
amounts shown below, 

Particulars 
March JI, 2021 March 31, 1020 

lntr~.fUlt' Oet.rL•a11~ lncN!Me. Occrc1u 
Discount rate {0.5% movement) (I 23) 1,32 (0.K8) O 96 
Future salary increases (0 5% movement) I 31 (1.17) 0,00 (0 93) 
Attrition rate (0 ,5% movement) (0 56) 0 57 (0,28) 0 28 
Mm111ll1~ rate {10% 1110 , ·t mcnt) 0.00 0.00 CI.Oll 0.00 

Although the analysis does not take account of lhe full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown 

32 Due to Micro, SmRII and Medium Enterprises 

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterpnses should mention in thetr 
correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated .nf\~r filing of the Memorandum Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such 
enterprises as at 31 March 2021 has been made in the financial statements based on infom,ntion received and available with the Company. Further in view of the management, the impact of 
interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('The MS MED Act') is not «peeled lo be material. The 
Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier 

Particulars 

The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small s,1ppli-cr1 
as at the end of the year 

-Principal 

-Interest 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the 
MSMEDAct 

·n1c amount of payments made to m11: r0 and t11ntll l suppliers 
beyond the appointed day during the accounting year; 

The amount of interest due anri pc,yable for the period of 
delay in making paymenl (which have been paid but beyond 
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
interest specified under the MSMED Act; 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 
end of each accounting year 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterpnse 
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure 
under the MSMED Act 

A,at 

Man:h 31, 2021 

0 16 
0 00 

tin lnkl11) 

A,at 

Morch 31, 2010 

47 68 
0 68 



Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

33 Financial instruments: Fair value and risk managements 

A. Accounlini; ch1s~d ncallon and fair vn lu 
A,~ at M11n1h 31, 2021 ' 
F/11a11cial assets 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balances other than above 
Loans 
Other financial nssets 

Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 

As at March 31, 2020 

Financial assets 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balances other than above 
Loans 
Other financial assets 

Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 

Measurement of fair values 
The carrying value approximates the fair value. 

B. Financial risk management 
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. 

(i) Risk management framework 

FVTPL 

FVTPL 

ft in lakhs) 
Amortised cost Total 

815.73 815 73 
222.12 222.12 

2.50 2.50 
2.55 2 55 

59.75 59.75 
1,102.65 I 102.65 

1,5 18.17 1,5 18.17 
I 518.17 I 518. 17 

Amortised cost Total 

1,005.08 1,005 08 
78.69 78 69 

2.25 2 25 
2.55 2 55 

242.56 242.56 
I 331.12 1,331.12 

l,SS l.91 1,55 1.91 
I 551.9 1 1,551.9 1 

The Company's risk management is carried out by a central treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board supervises overall risk management, as 
well _as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk and use of financial instruments. 

(ii) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The credit risk arises principally 
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments. 

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for 
credit. The collection from the trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team. 

The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its cstimt1tc of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables based on the past and the recent collection 
trend. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at reporting date is primaril y from trade receivables amounting to Rs. 901.60 lakhs (31 March 2020: Rs. 1098.51 Lakhs). The 
movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows: 

Allowance for credit loss 

Opening balance 
Credit loss rccognl~cd 

,losing balance 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

93.43 
(7.56) 
85.87 

No single customer accounted for more than I 0% of the revenue as of March 31, 2021 . There is no significant concentration of credit risk. 

(tin lakhs) 

Asal 
March Jl, 2020 

J5 12 
58.31 
93.43 

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international and 

V""' credi< ra<iog '""''" 



Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for th.e year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

(iii) Liquidity risk 
Liquid ity risk is tbe risk thot the C.' ompnny will encoun ter diniculty in meoLing Ille obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another 
linancial asset. The Cornpuny' s approach to mannging liquidity is to ens ure, us far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both 
nomrnl and stressed conditions, wi tho\1l incurring unacccptoblc losses or risking dumage to the Company's reputation. 

The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements, Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived. 

The table below provides details regnrding the undiscounted contractual maturities of si 1;1n ilicnnt financial liabilities as ofMar_ch 3 I , 2021 : ('t in luklls) 
r a rtlculnrs Less than 1 yei1r l • 3 ye11rs 3-5 years more thou 5 yenr Total 
Trade payables 1,5 18.17 l ,5111,17 
Total 1,518.17 1,5.18.17 

The table below provides details regarding the und i~counted contractual nmtu ri ties ofsignlf1cnnt financial Uubllltics as of March 31 , 2020: ff in lu khN) 
Particulars t..ess lhon 1 year - 1. 3 yei1rs 3-5 yeurs more than 5 ycurs 
Trade payables I ,551.91 ' 

Total 
1,55 1 ,91 

Tofdl 1,55 1.91 1,55 1.9 1 

(iv) Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value offuture cash flows or a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest 
rates. There are no such associated rise in the Company. 

(v) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk 
The Company does not have any borrowings in the current year and previous year. 

34 On Mnr h 11 , 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 o glob,11 pandcrn ic and suggested g11 idcl111es tor contulnment 11 11d mi tigation worldwide. WhilsL I or FY 
202 1 was ·cvcrcly i111pucted due to the pandemic, the ompany's operations sUtrted to gradu11lly increase during Q2 and Q3 of FY 2021 consequent to thi.; reduct ion of the impact of 
the pandemic With the incrc,1sc in the s1:vorit y of the ou tbreak towards the end of Q4 of FY 202 1 and subsequent to March J I, 202 1, the st-ule governments huvc re-imposed various 
restrictions and l<lckdowns. 

The 11undem10 has Impacted the operations or the Company during the yen r ended Murch 31, 202 1 and the Company continues to acti vely manage its business, includmg taking 
variou · in itin1ivcs 10 optimise ooslS nnd meet its linancinl comm itments, tluiy considering the evolving nuturc or the pandemic and the estimated duration of its impact. As 111 March 
'.l I, 202 1, the Mnnogemcnt has used i11temnl tU1d external sources of lntbrrrmtlon uptll the dnte ot' approval of these r11mnci11I s(atemunL~ in determining the impact of OVlD- 19 
pandemic. 1'he Management hijs used the principles of prudence in developing estimates, assumptions, exercising judgements and performing sensitivity analysis. The Company as of 
the report mg dote doos not expect nny long torm adverse Impact ot' COVID- 19 on lrs abil ity IU rucover the carrying vul uc of its current nsscts and non-current assets including trade 
receivables, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and meeting its financial oblignti<111s. 

The eventual outcome of the impact of the pandemic may be different from that estimated as on the date or approval of these financial statements and any significant impact of these 
changes would be recognized in the financial statements as and when these material changes to economic conditions arise. 

35 Code on Social Security 2020 

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ("the Code") which would impact the contributions by the Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity has received Presidential assent m 
September 2020. The Code have been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date from which the Code will come into effect has not been notified The Ministry of Labour 
and Employment (Ministry) has released drall rul es for the Code on November 13, 2020 and has invited Sllggustlons from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the 
Ministry. The Company will complete its evaluation and will give appropriate impact in its consolidated financial statements in the period in which the Code becomes effective and 
the related rules are publ ished. 

\I 
for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 
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Director 
DIN: 07010883 

Place: Bengaluru 
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